# **City of Fort Lauderdale**

City Hall 100 North Andrews Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 www.fortlauderdale.gov



## **Meeting Minutes**

Tuesday, June 18, 2019 11:30 AM

Joint Workshop with Budget Advisory Board

City Commission Chambers

# **CITY COMMISSION WORKSHOP**

FORT LAUDERDALE CITY COMMISSION

DEAN J. TRANTALIS Mayor

ROBERT L. McKINZIE Vice Mayor - Commissioner - District III

HEATHER MORAITIS Commissioner - District I

STEVEN GLASSMAN Commissioner - District II

BEN SORENSEN Commissioner - District IV

CHRIS LAGERBLOOM, City Manager JOHN HERBST, City Auditor JEFFREY A. MODARELLI, City Clerk ALAIN E. BOILEAU, City Attorney

#### **CALL TO ORDER**

Mayor Trantalis called the meeting to order at 11:41 a.m.

#### **ROLL CALL**

**Commission Members Present:** Commissioner Heather Moraitis (participated by phone and arrived at 12:22 p.m.), Commissioner Steven Glassman, Vice Mayor Robert L. McKinzie, Commissioner Ben Sorensen (arrived at 11:43 a.m.), and Mayor Dean J. Trantalis

**Budget Advisory Board Members Present:** Chair Brian Donaldson, Vice Chair David Orshefsky, William F. Goetz, Jeff Lowe, Gregg McKee, Johnnie Smith, and Christopher Williams

Not Present: Eric Metz, Prabhuling Patel

#### **QUORUM ESTABLISHED**

**Also Present:** City Manager Chris Lagerbloom, City Clerk Jeffrey A. Modarelli, City Attorney Alain E. Boileau, and City Auditor John Herbst

### **OLD/NEW BUSINESS**

BUS-1 19-0645 FY 2020 - FY 2030 Revenue Sufficiency Analysis

Commissioner Sorensen arrived at 11:43 p.m.

Mayor Trantalis acknowledged the Budget Advisory Board (BAB) for its work, thanking each member for their ongoing efforts. City Manager Lagerbloom noted upcoming Workshops with the BAB to develop the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Budget. City Manager Lagerbloom said he would present budget recommendations at the July 9, 2019 Commission Regular Meeting based upon Commission direction. He requested Commission direction regarding setting the 2020 millage rate and Fire Assessment Fee.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Kyle Stevens, Managing Consultant, Stantec. Mr. Stevens introduced other Stantec representatives in attendance.

Mr. Stevens reviewed and explained projection models illustrated in the Revenue Sufficiency Study (Study) presentation that provides a framework for financial decision making, illuminate key decision points and consideration of future cost requirements, and events. The Study

encompasses an annual review of the Enterprise Fund and General Fund, projecting current and future budgets.

Mr. Stevens recommended focusing on the General Fund, which would include a review of assumptions and models. He confirmed that there would be an additional Commission Workshop with the BAB in August 2019 which would provide an opportunity to focus on the Enterprise Fund. Information regarding both funds is available. The foundations of the Study include the Fiscal Year 2019 (FY 2019) Budget, the preliminary FY 2020 Budget and Staff input.

#### A copy of the presentation is attached to these minutes.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the General Fund analysis for the Fire Assessment Fee. In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, Mr. Stevens explained details regarding "cost recovery" associated with the Fire Assessment Fee. It is a percentage for the recovery of costs related to fire service only. Up to one hundred percent (100%) of those costs can be recovered from property owners through the Fire Assessment Fee. The analysis of the current Fire Assessment Fee schedule is below one hundred percent (100%) cost-recovery. The assumptions within the presentation model include a \$30 increase in 2020 and a \$30 increase in 2021.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, Mr. Stevens said the last Fire Assessment Fee increase was updated three (3) years ago and was close to full cost recovery at that time. Further comment and discussion ensued.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen's question, Paul Vanden Berge, Public Safety Administrator, explained details regarding Fire Assessment Fee calculations.

In response to BAB Chair Brian Donaldson, Mr. Vanden Berge reviewed the number and ratio of Fire Suppression related calls versus Emergency Medical Service (EMS) calls and how they are determined. There is no cost recovery for EMS calls. Mr. Vanden Berge explained the process to ascertain the Fire Assessment Fee by parcel, expounding on details. Various Fire Assessment Fee tables are used to determine Fees for residential, commercial, institutional and industrial warehouse parcels.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen's question, Mr. Vanden Berge confirmed that with one hundred percent (100%) cost recovery, no funding from the General Fund would be required. Mayor Trantalis noted that this budget technique prevents millage rate increases.

Commissioner Glassman commented on details and equity related to the Fire Assessment Fee charged to unit owners in multi-family buildings, inquiring about addressing equity. City Manager Lagerbloom explained that a unit in a multi-family residential building had been treated as a single residential unit, attached or detached. Mr. Vanden Berge said that the City's consultant, Government Services Group, confirmed the administrative difficulty in addressing this subject, expounding on details. Commissioner Glassman commented on the substantial cost to large residential buildings. Further comment and discussion ensued.

In response to Vice Mayor McKinzie, BAB Chair Brian Donaldson noted that City Manager Lagerbloom recommended a \$30 increase in the Fire Assessment Fee in 2020 and a \$30 increase in 2021. BAB Chair Donaldson said the BAB, in a 6-2 recommendation, supports a one-time \$60 increase this year that allows for full Fire Assessment Fee recovery. This recommendation was made due to the proposed 2021 increase in Water and Sewer Service charges. He expounded on details. Vice Mayor McKinzie commented on his perspective.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding using Fire Assessment Fees for other budget items, City Attorney Alain Boileau said there would need to be a correlation to the Fee. BAB Chair Donaldson responded, noting that the proposed true-up recovery amount of \$311 for Fees, if fully funded in 2020, would free up money previously transferred from the General Fund for one hundred percent (100%) Fire Assessment Fee cost recovery.

City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed that a portion of the \$60 Fire Assessment Fee increase would go towards General Fund revenue and be utilized for capital projects. Budget Director Laura Reece concurred with BAB Chair Donaldson's comments, confirming dollars from the General Fund are being spent to achieve one hundred percent (100%) Fire Assessment Fee cost recovery. These funds are free to be used on other items in the General Fund. Ms. Reece explained that the proposed second year of the two \$30 annual increases is being relied upon to address the budget gap in FY 2021, expounding on details.

BAB Board Member William Goetz commented on his opposition to the BAB vote on this subject, explaining his reasoning and noting that lower-income residents pay sixty-eight percent (68%) of their income for housing and transportation. He commented on the related inequity, recommending addressing this cost through an ad valorem increase.

BAB Vice-Chair David Orshefsky noted that cost recovery for the Fire Assessment Fee looks in arrears, confirming that the General Fund had

been subsidizing this cost. He said that a funding gap would be realized every three years if addressed in this manner. If done annually, this would not be the case.

BAB Board Member Gregg McKee commented on the increase in the Fire Assessment Fee cost recovery. Mayor Trantalis discussed increased costs and Staff input. Further discussion ensued.

Mr. Stevens discussed the second assumption factored into the presentation models related to the three (3) Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) areas, expounding on related details illustrated in the presentation. He noted that the Central Beach CRA sunsets in 2021, explaining budget-related information.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, Mr. Stevens confirmed that the City would realize net additional funds in the General Fund after factoring in operation and maintenance costs occurring on October 1, 2021. He explained the financial impact of the Northwest-Progresso-Flagler Heights CRA sunsetting in 2026, resulting in a positive impact on the General Fund after factoring in operations and maintenance costs.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the annual retirement contribution, which factors into the future expense adjustment due to a reduction in rates of return, expounding on related details and noting this would occur between 2020 and 2027.

Mr. Stevens discussed the construction of a new EMS Station in FY 2020 and additional Staff costs in FY 2021. Mr. Stevens pointed out additional costs factored into the FY 2021 budget, including moving expenses for a new Police Station.

Mr. Stevens discussed factoring in costs related to operation and maintenance expenses related to the proposed Joint Governmental Center based on estimates from Staff. City Manager Lagerbloom expounded on related details.

Mr. Stevens explained details related to factoring in operation and maintenance expenses for the Parks Bond items in 2021 and 2024. Ms. Reece confirmed that these costs represent operations and maintenance cost for new facilities.

Mr. Stevens discussed the impact of factoring out the Return on Investment (ROI) from the General Fund through FY 2022. In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, Mr. Stevens confirmed this equates to an approximate cumulative loss to the General Fund of \$5,000,000 per year.

City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed \$10,200,000 would be the amount factored out in FY 2020.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the dynamics used for the financial models listed in the presentation. He discussed the 10-year forecasting model, explaining details illustrated in the presentation, including key revenue drivers.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, Mr. Stevens explained why the presentation model illustrates a decrease in growth going forward, explaining efforts to be conservative regarding assumptions over time. Mr. Stevens confirmed the ability to update assumption models.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding current and future anticipated development, Mr. Stevens explained that this is a key assumption for discussion, confirming the desire to be conservative with assumptions and expounding on related details.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding the assumption model, Mr. Stevens said the percentage listed in the model is the change in taxable value and is a composite of existing real estate and new construction.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the Fire Suppression Assessment Fee assumption model, confirming the ability to update the model based on a final decision, expounding on details.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen, Mr. Stevens modified the dynamic for the Fire Assessment Fee model increasing it to full recovery in the first year, explaining related details.

In response to BAB Vice-Chair David Orshefsky's question regarding the assumptions in the model for the second year of the Fire Assessment Fee increase and the impact on the Fund Balance, Ms. Reece explained that the numbers reflect the net cash flow. The revenues are slightly lower than expenses.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the ending year Fund Balance Chart (Chart) updated to reflect full cost recovery in FY 2020, expounding on details illustrated in the presentation.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding the deficit listed in the Chart, Mr. Stevens explained it is the projection for the current year, FY 2019. Mr. Stevens confirmed the deficiency is due to labor contract costs. BAB Chair Donaldson confirmed that the possible surplus in FY

2020 is associated with the first \$30 Fire Assessment Fee increase. Mayor Trantalis noted that full Fire Assessment Fee recovery of \$60, if implemented in 2020, results in a surplus of \$4,590,000 in the General Fund.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen's question, City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed the ability for an annual reassessment of the Fire Assessment Fee. Discussion ensued on achieving the Target Fund Balance and the tax value remaining the same.

Commissioner Moraitis arrived at 12:22 p.m.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen's question, BAB Chair Donaldson reviewed discussions and recommendations made at the last BAB Meeting. The BAB voted 6-2 to increase the full \$60 one-time Fire Assessment Fee. The BAB voted 6-2 to maintain the current ad valorem rate for FY 2020 based upon strategic budget reductions.

BAB Vice Chair Orshefsky discussed the minority position to increase ad valorem taxes, commenting on two items. The first item encompasses the increase in the Fire Assessment Fee and the Water and Sewer Rate increase in 2021, explaining details related to using the ad valorem as a mechanism to fund these increases. He commented on the capital funding in the presentation remaining the same over the next ten years with limited increases.

BAB Vice Chair Orshefsky noted previous challenges in this area and the opportunity to address capital funding needs through incremental increases in ad valorem taxes. Further comment and discussion ensued.

BAB Vice Chair Orshefsky noted that current capital expenditures come from debt issues. Mayor Trantalis acknowledged BAB Vice Chair Orshefsky's point, commenting on efforts to "true-up" the budget due to prior Return on Investment (ROI) practices and efforts to address a Consent Order between the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the City of Fort Lauderdale.

BAB Chair Donaldson commented that the BAB voted and recommended maintaining the current ad valorem rate and an increase to the Fire Assessment Fee in this fiscal year budget. The BAB could have possible differing suggestions for future years 2021 and 2022, explaining related details.

Mr. Stevens reviewed assumption models based upon property values and adjusting the Fire Assessment Fee annually versus every three

years, explaining related details.

BAB Board Member Johnnie Smith commented on the calculated amount for the Fire Assessment Fee. Mr. Stevens confirmed the "true-up" amount could be higher. He reviewed options to address the Fire Assessment Fee through increases to the millage rate over time, expounding on details.

In response to Vice Mayor McKinzie's question, Mayor Trantalis confirmed the need for input regarding addressing the Fire Assessment Fee. City Manager Lagerbloom noted the need for Commission direction. Discussion ensued on this topic.

Vice Mayor McKinzie confirmed his support of the BAB's recommendations. Further comment and discussion ensued. Ms. Reece confirmed that the full recovery amount for the Fire Assessment Fee would be \$311. Commissioner Sorensen concurred. Mayor Trantalis confirmed a consensus on this BAB recommendation.

In response to Commissioner Glassman, City Manager Lagerbloom explained the impact of this decision. He said that a recommendation would come to the Commission to use related funds discussed earlier for Capital Projects and would not request funding for recurring items. City Manager Lagerbloom requested direction on maintaining the millage rate at 4.1193. Commissioner Sorensen noted his recommendation to maintain the current millage rate. Mayor Trantalis and Commissioner Moraitis concurred.

BAB Chair Donaldson noted open items that the BAB is still working on in conjunction with City Manager Lagerbloom and Staff. These include recovering credit card fees charged to the City when residents pay water bills. Mayor Trantalis commented that Staff would address this topic.

BAB Chair Donaldson noted that the amount budgeted for Police Department overtime is a significant budget item to be addressed. He confirmed an upcoming BAB Meeting on August 14, 2019 and the next Commission Workshop with the BAB on August 20, 2019.

BAB Chair Donaldson commended City Manager Lagerbloom and Staff on their efforts to budget for initiatives put forth at the Commission Goal Setting Session.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the key assumptions, analysis, key planning observations and considerations for discussion regarding the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund, as illustrated in the presentation. The updated

model realizes minimum three-month reserve targets. The assumption model includes \$20,000,000 in cash funding for Capital Projects, two traunches of \$200,000,000 bonds in the future (2023 and 2028), and the phase-out of the Return on Investment (ROI). He confirmed the sustainability of the Water and Sewer Fund model that includes a five percent (5%) overall revenue increase beginning in 2021, explaining related details (a three point six percent (3.6%) rate increase in water fees and 7 percent (7%) in sewer fees) and allowing for the funding of \$20,000,000 in Capital Projects and \$200,000,000 in bond funding for 2023 and 2028.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, Mr. Stevens explained details related to revenue sufficiency models and the blended rate structure adjustments.

BAB Vice Chair Orshefsky said that this Study has a ten-year scope, commenting that capital funding assumptions and bond issues would be used as funding mechanisms into the future. He commented on details related to addressing funding debt service costs for Water and Sewer Fund capital needs, noting that the Commission will need to make annual trim notice decisions to reduce this debt cost.

Mr. Stevens confirmed that the Study's annual funding assumptions for capital projects is \$20,000,000, commenting on related details. BAB Vice Chair Orshefsky noted that the ROI remaining in the Water and Sewer Fund allows for this \$20,000,000 in capital funding.

Mayor Trantalis said that this Study does not contemplate a Commission decision regarding the Fiveash Water Treatment Plant. This Capital Improvement Project (CIP) spending would impact the Study in addition to debt service.

Mr. Stevens discussed the Regional Sewer Enterprise Fund and related capital funding, stating that contracts in place set these rates. He explained details regarding this expense, which has been reduced, expounding on relevant details as illustrated in the presentation.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the Stormwater Enterprise Fund model, including key assumptions, analysis, planning observations and considerations. These include the first issuance of a \$200,000,000 bond in 2020 or 2021 for the Stormwater Fund and operations and maintenance costs. Mr. Stevens explained details related to these items. The current target reserve is one and one-half (1.5) months and suggested a three (3) month reserve implemented over time for consistency with other Enterprise Funds and industry standards. Residential bills in FY 2020

would include a \$2.00 fee increase. When the \$200,000,000 bond is issued, there will be a need for additional revenue to support debt service, requiring future rate discussions.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the key assumptions, analysis, key planning observations and considerations for discussion in the Sanitation Enterprise Fund model, which required a mid-year increase this year. The rates were raised approximately twenty-five percent (25%) to cover contractual increases within the FY 2019 Budget. Mr. Stevens noted input from Staff regarding addressing contamination at a sanitation site, confirming \$1,800,000 has been budgeted over two years for the 2024 mandated completion timeline.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, Mr. Stevens confirmed that the rate increase addresses all three components of residential service.

In response to Vice Mayor McKinzie's question, Mr. Stevens explained his understanding that a new vendor was selected and prices for sanitation services increased under the contract. The revenue increase in 2019 is to cover those costs. Vice Mayor McKinzie commented on his concerns. Further comment and discussion ensued.

Mr. Stevens recommended increasing the Sanitation Fund reserves to three (3) months, expounding on the reasoning. He reviewed the Sanitation Fund updated model, the adjustment for 2019, key planning observations and considerations, as illustrated in the presentation. With the implementation of the 2019 rate adjustment, there would be no need for a rate adjustment in 2020. He noted a four percent (4%) indexing plan into future years to cover operating inflation, which would allow a sustainable plan into the future.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the key assumptions, analysis, key planning observations and considerations for discussion in the Parking Enterprise Fund model, as illustrated in the presentation. In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding the Las Olas Garage (Parking Garage), Ms. Reece confirmed Parking Garage funding is through the Beach CRA and Parking Enterprise Fund in addition to a \$13,000,000 Line of Credit. Mayor Trantalis commented on the collection of net revenue from the Parking Garage. Mr. Stevens confirmed, stating that funds are coming out of the Parking Enterprise Fund Balance. He expounded on additional information factored into the forecast and analysis of the Parking Enterprise Fund which is expected to deteriorate over time.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, Ben Rogers, Interim Director of Transportation and Mobility (TAM) confirmed that the parking fee at the

Parking Garage is \$2.00 per hour. Mr. Rogers said he would provide parking recommendations to City Manager Lagerbloom by mid-July 2019. Ms. Reece commented on the impact on the Parking Fund due to the elimination of the Oceanside Parking Lot.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the key assumptions, analysis, key planning observations and considerations for discussion of the model for the Fort Lauderdale Executive Airport Enterprise Fund, as illustrated in the presentation.

Mr. Stevens commented on the impact of a structural deficit going into the future for repayment of the purchase of property from the General Fund to the FXE Enterprise Fund Balance that is projected to end in 2024, expounding on details. Mr. Stevens discussed revenue enhancement opportunities at FXE.

In response to Commissioner McKinzie's question, City Attorney Alain Boileau confirmed that this purchased parcel is a City parcel. Mr. Stevens expounded on suggested revenue enhancements to the FXE Enterprise Fund.

In response to Mayor Trantalis question regarding phasing out the ROI, Mr. Stevens explained that there would be a higher rate of revenue increases. Comment and discussion ensued.

Mr. Stevens reviewed the key assumptions, analysis, key planning observations and considerations for discussion in the model for the Building Enterprise Fund, as illustrated in the presentation. He said that the revenue for the Building Enterprise Fund is dependent upon economic activity, expounding on details.

### BUS-2 19-0647 Business Updates

Vice Mayor McKinzie requested BAB Chair Donaldson bring back adjustments or updates regarding Police Department overtime to the Commission. BAB Chair Donaldson confirmed the goal was not to reduce Police and Emergency Medical Services. He expounded on details regarding new full-time Police Staff hiring that would impact Police overtime budgeting, commenting on additional information. The goal is to project overtime costs for budget accuracy.

Commissioner Moraitis commented on School Resource Officers (SROs) impact on overtime, requesting an update on funding full-time SROs. City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed the FY 2020 Budget has funding for SROs in addition to reimbursement revenue from the Broward County School Board (School Board).

Mayor Trantalis recognized Police Chief Rick Maglione. Chief Maglione gave a status update on the current SRO Contract with the School Board, noting it has not been finalized and expounding on details related to moving forward. The reimbursement amount requested is \$70,000 per SRO. Currently, \$52,000 is the amount reimbursed. Chief Maglione confirmed SRO coverage in ten (10) schools in FY 2020. He said that until the contract is finalized, SRO budgeting could not move forward. Chief Maglione noted that in the future if the School Board requests that the Police Department provides an SRO to each City School, the cost would be approximately \$3,000,000 per year, expounding on details.

Commissioner Moraitis commented on her desire to replace School Guardians with SROs comprised of City Police Officers. Chief Maglione noted the need to add these vacancies to the Police Department, address recruiting efforts and details regarding the required timeline.

In response to BAB Board Member Goetz's question regarding the project management initiative and the transfer of personnel and funding's impact on the projections noted in this Report, City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed these were contemplated in the projections, explaining related details.

Further discussion ensued on the format of this meeting.

BUS-3 <u>19-0648</u>

FY 2020 Budget Review

- 1. Millage Rate
- 2. Fire Assessment Fee

Please see BUS-1 discussions.

### **ADJOURNMENT**

Mayor Trantalis adjourned the meeting at 1:10 p.m.